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Washington, D.C. 20002

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
This civil rights action challenges the multiple, serious failures of the District of
Columbia Department of Human Services to provide language access services to the residents of
the city. Plaintiffs Maria Amaya Torres and Minerva Nolasco (collectively, “Plaintiffs”),
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, seek to remedy violations of their

rights secured by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.



(“Title VI”), and the District of Columbia Human Rights Act, D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.
(“DCHRA”), by Defendants the District of Columbia (“the “District”) and Laura Zeilinger, Esq.,
the Director of the District of Columbia Department of Human Services (collectively,
“Defendants”). Defendants have violated the rights of Plaintiffs and discriminated against them
by denying them language access services mandated by law. For their complaint against
Defendants, Plaintiffs therefore state and allege the following:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. The District’s Department of Human Services (“DHS”) is failing in its mission
to serve those most in need, because it fails to communicate effectively with them.

2. Through DHS, the District has taken on the responsibility of providing
sustenance, medical care, and other temporary benefits and services to the District’s low-income
residents. Many of the District’s diverse residents, who have emigrated from around the world,
speak little-to-no English; that is, they are non-English proficient (“NEP”) or limited-English
proficient (“LEP”). To serve this at-risk population adequately, the District has an obligation—
born from local law, federal law, and basic morals—to utilize interpreters to facilitate
conversations between these residents and the DHS agents who serve them, and to translate the
documents that DHS provides to these LEP/NEP residents. Conversations between DHS agents
and a resident, and documents issued by DHS to that resident, often concern matters of critical
importance for the resident—namely, the basis for decisions as to that resident’s entitlement to
benefits. DHS agents have thus been instructed, by the agency’s director, to communicate with
LEP/NEP residents through multilingual staff and/or a telephonic translation service known as

the “Language Line.”



3. DHS agents routinely flout this instruction, and the law. According to field tests
conducted by the District’s Office of Human Rights (“OHR”), which is the agency tasked with
monitoring compliance with the District’s Language Access Act of 2004 (the “LAA”), DHS fails
to provide language access services as required by law in approximately half of the interactions
DHS has with District residents. For example, DHS will fail to translate critical documents into
LEP/NEP residents’ language and will refuse to provide interpretation services for LEP/NEP
residents. DHS agents do so despite being fully aware of their legal obligation to provide
language access services to LEP/NEP District residents; the LEP/NEP status of all the residents
that they serve; and, in most instances, explicit on-the-spot requests for interpretation and
translation services. DHS simply runs roughshod over all of this, intentionally discriminating
against the individuals it serves, without compunction. DHS’s conduct has earned it the rock-
bottom score of “0/5” for the “quality” of its language access services, according to a 2014 report
issued by the OHR.

4. Plaintiffs Maria Amaya Torres and Minerva Nolasco have experienced this
discrimination first-hand. In the case of Ms. Torres, she had her Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Plan benefits slashed by nearly two-thirds after the District refused her request to
provide an interpreter at her annual re-certification appointment. In the case of Ms. Nolasco, she
was denied critical medical care when she was seven months pregnant because her health
benefits were canceled erroneously and not reinstated due to a miscommunication caused by
DHS’s failure to provide an interpreter. In both cases, DHS was well aware of the customer’s
NEP status but refused to provide translation and interpretation services nonetheless.

5. DHS’s failure to provide translation and interpretation services is more than just

an inconvenience—it is illegal. On this point, the law is unequivocal. Under Section 3 of the



LAA, DHS “shall provide oral language services to a person with limited or no English
proficiency who seeks to access or participate in the services, programs, or activities offered by”
DHS. Under Section 4 of the LAA, DHS “shall provide translations of vital documents into any
non-English language spoken by a limited or no-English proficient population that constitutes
3% or 500 individuals, whichever is less, of the population served or encountered, or likely to be

served or encountered, by the covered entity in the District of Columbia.”

Applicable federal
regulations also direct District agencies to “take reasonable steps, considering the scope of the
program and the size and concentration of [an LEP/NEP] population, to provide information in
appropriate languages to” such LEP/NEP persons. See 28 C.F.R. 42.405(d)(1).

6. DHS’s actions are discriminatory. That is, they violate the DCHRA and Title
VI. DHS’s repeated failure to provide language services—in the face of explicit requests for
translation and interpretation, local laws and federal regulations compelling such language
services, and multiple determinations by the OHR that DHS is violating these laws—evidences
an intent to discriminate against individuals on the basis of their national origin (see Claims I and
IT). Further, DHS’s failure to provide language services has a disparate discriminatory impact on
people of Hispanic and other foreign origin, as such persons are denied benefits in
disproportionate numbers (see Claim III).

7. By this action, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and all others who are

similarly situated, seek to change DHS’s unlawful discriminatory practice of denying necessary

translation and interpretation services to LEP/NEP District residents. Plaintiffs seek an order

! Both Ms. Nolasco and Ms. Torres speak Spanish, which is a language spoken by approximately
90 percent of the LEP/NEP residents who are customers of DHS. DHS has acknowledged that
Spanish-speakers make up more than 3% or 500 of the individuals they serve, encounter, or are
likely to encounter. Because this exceeds the threshold set by the LAA, DHS is required to
provide written translations of vital documents in Spanish to Spanish-speaking District residents.



enjoining defendants, at a minimum, to comply with the requirements of the LAA; to enjoin
DHS from retaliating against District residents who complain about DHS’s failure to provide
language services; and to take all necessary measures to ensure that 100 percent of the District’s
LEP/NEP residents who seek translation or interpretation services with the DHS are provided

with such assistance.

JURISDICTION
8. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to D.C. Code §11-921.
9. This Court is the appropriate forum for this action, as all Plaintiffs and

Defendants are domiciled in the District, most if not all relevant events took place in the District,
and all relevant documents and witnesses are located in the District.
FACTS

A. The Parties.

10. Plaintiff Maria Amaya Torres is a Spanish-speaking resident of the District. As
described in greater detail below, Ms. Torres is a low-income resident who relies on the
District’s Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (“SNAP”), as administered by DHS, to
provide food for her family. SNAP benefits are colloquially referred to as “food stamps.”

11. Plaintiff Minerva Nolasco is a Spanish-speaking resident of the District. As
described in greater detail below, Ms. Nolasco is a low-income resident who relies on the DC
Healthcare Alliance medical insurance program (“Alliance”), as administered by DHS, for
necessary medical care and treatment. Ms. Nolasco also relies on SNAP to provide food for her
family.

12. Defendant District of Columbia is a municipal entity organized under Article I,
Section 8, Clause 17 of the U.S. Constitution, and under the laws of the United States. Through

DHS, the District implements and administers benefits programs for the District’s low-income



and at-risk residents. These programs, which include nutrition and health care benefits, are
designed to provide temporary support and assistance while the recipients maximize their
potential for economic security and self-sufficiency.

13. Defendant Laura Zeilinger is the Director of DHS. In that capacity, Zeilinger
oversees a broad range of policy and administrative issues for DHS. This includes DHS’s
provision of translation and interpretation services in compliance with the LAA, Title VI, the
DCHRA, and all other laws, statutes, regulations, and policy directives concerning language
access. Plaintiffs bring this action against Zeilinger in her official capacity as Director of DHS
only.

B. The Department of Human Services Has a Woeful Record of Failing to Provide
Legally-Required Language Access Services to Its LEP/NEP Residents.

14. DHS serves a critical function in the District’s communities, providing a variety
of basic services for families and persons in need. For example, it provides medical benefits to
low-income residents; it provides food and nutritional benefits; it provides housing and shelter
for individuals or families who are homeless, at risk of being homeless, or otherwise in need of
emergency shelter; and it provides a variety of other services for families and individuals,
ranging from child care to family violence prevention.

15. To access DHS’s services, District residents need to communicate with DHS
agents. This is done both in-person at DHS service centers (such as the center located at 1207
Taylor Street, N.-W., Washington, D.C. 20011), and via documentation that is provided by or to
residents. Of the approximately 200,000 customers that DHS serves every year, approximately
22,000 are LEP/NEP customers. Of those 22,000 LEP/NEP customers, 90 percent (or almost

20,000) are Spanish speakers.



16. The individuals who interact with DHS tend to be low-income and include a
disproportionately high percentage of LEP/NEP persons, almost all of whom immigrated to the
United States from elsewhere in the world.

17. Where an LEP/NEP resident seeks to have a conversation with a DHS agent, the
DHS agent is required by law to provide that individual with “oral language services.” D.C.
Code § 2-1932(a). These include “placement of bilingual staff in public contact positions; the
provision of experienced and trained staff interpreters; contracting with telephone interpreter
programs; contracting with private interpreter services; and using interpreters made available
through community service organizations that are publicly funded for that purpose.” D.C. Code
§ 2-1931(6). To this end, when bilingual staff is not available to provide in-language services,
DHS agents have access to the “Language Line,” a telephone interpretation system whereby a
DHS employee can engage an interpreter, over the telephone, to facilitate a discussion with a
LEP/NEP resident. According to a 2014 memorandum issued by the then-interim director of
DHS, agents are instructed and required to use the Language Line as is necessary.

18. Nonetheless, DHS agents routinely refuse to offer necessary interpretation and
translation services. This has resulted in administrative actions, called Language Access
Complaints, pursued before the OHR, which is tasked with enforcing compliance with the LAA
by the District’s agencies. Here are a few examples of such administrative actions:

e A Spanish-speaking resident alleged that, on three separate visits to a DHS
service center in October and November of 2012, she was asked to fill out
documents in English. When she sought assistance from DHS agents, the
agents repeatedly told her that they did not understand her question and

instructed her to speak English.



In November 2012, a Spanish-speaking resident went to the Taylor Street
DHS Center to re-certify for the SNAP program. Although the DHS agent
used the Language Line, she did not complete the resident’s application
correctly. The resident was subsequently denied her benefits, via a letter
that was written in English. The resident returned to the Center on
February 6, 2013 to explain that she needed to add her newborn son to her
benefits. She asked to speak with a Spanish-speaking DHS agent; she was
told she could not speak with one. The DHS agent utilized the Language
Line but then told the resident that she could not help her. The resident,
very upset, began to cry; she found a Spanish-speaking DHS agent
(notwithstanding the prior representations that no agent was available for
her) and explained what happened. This Spanish-speaking DHS agent
then checked the resident’s application, only to discover that it had never
been processed. The DHS agent had no explanation for why it was never
processed.

A Spanish-speaking resident alleged that, on August 5, 2013, she called
DHS approximately eight times with questions regarding her SNAP
benefits. Each time, she asked the DHS agent for assistance in Spanish.
Of those eight times, she either immediately was hung up on or—in
English—asked to hold, causing her to wait for 10-15 minutes until her
call ultimately was dropped. When she made similar calls to DHS on
September 3, 2013, she again either was hung up on, or asked to wait on

the line, with the calls eventually dropped.



19. Upon information and belief, this is just the tip of the iceberg; DHS has a track
record of failing to provide required translation and interpretation services. In its 2014 Annual
Compliance Review regarding language access in the District (the “OHR Report”), the OHR
observed that, just in fiscal year 2014, DHS had three (3) complaints docketed for administrative
proceedings—tied for the most among all District agencies. (OHR Report at 6.) In all three
cases, the OHR found DHS to be non-compliant with the LAA. (/d.) That is more non-
compliance findings than any other agency and half of all non-compliance findings in fiscal year
2014. A true and correct copy of the OHR Report is annexed hereto as Exhibit A.

20. In preparing the OHR Report, the OHR also performed an investigation into
DHS’s practices by conducting 19 in-person tests and 14 telephone field tests (for a total of 33
tests). (/d. at 42.) The OHR found that DHS “met only half or less compliance requirements” of
the LAA. (/d. at 21.) Specifically, DHS—despite having a “comprehensive system in place for
identifying and tracking LEP/NEP customers”—regularly failed to provide language access
services to its customers. (/d. at 42.) The OHR Report remarks that “almost half of the tests [15
out of 33] were met with inadequate quality of service.” (/d.) This performance earned DHS a
score of 0/5 for quality of service, the lowest of any District agency. (See generally id.)

21. The fact that DHS has a “comprehensive system in place for identifying and
tracking LEP/NEP customers” yet regularly fails to provide language access services
demonstrates that DHS’s discrimination is intentional. DHS can and does carefully track which
residents need translation or interpretation services, but it nonetheless refuses to provide these
services to these residents.

22. DHS’s leadership is well aware of the agency’s failure to provide adequate

language access services, yet it has failed to improve the agency’s practices. In November 2014,



the then-interim director of DHS, Deborah A. Carroll, sent a memorandum to “All DHS Staff”
observing that, between May 2013 through October 2014, DHS had received approximately
eight complaints from the OHR relating to non-compliance with the LAA. Calling this a
“trend,” Carroll directed the DHS Staff to improve its performance, reminding the DHS Staff of
the Language Line Services and other measures they can take to ensure that all residents are
provided with translation and/or interpretation services whenever they request them.

23. Unfortunately, as the experiences of Ms. Torres and Ms. Nolasco demonstrate
(see infra), DHS has not improved its access to translation and interpretation services under the
leadership of its current director, Laura Zeilinger. Thus, DHS continues to discriminate against
District residents on the basis of their national origin.

C. Ms. Torres Had Her SNAP Benefits Wrongly Reduced as a Result of DHS’s Failure
to Provide Necessary and Required Translation and Interpretation Services.

24, Ms. Torres is a Spanish speaker. She does not speak English. Ms. Torres
carries an “I Speak” card created by the OHR indicating that she speaks Spanish and requires
Spanish language services. Ms. Torres shows this card to government employees to inform them
that she speaks Spanish and thus needs interpretation and translation.

25. Ms. Torres is enrolled in the SNAP program. She relies on SNAP to feed her
family. Without SNAP benefits, Ms. Torres’ ability to feed her child and herself would be in
constant jeopardy.

26. To remain eligible for SNAP benefits, Ms. Torres must appear, in person, once
a year at DHS to re-certify her personal and financial information. At these appearances, Ms.
Torres must bring various documents regarding her household income and rent. Ms. Torres is
then interviewed by a DHS agent, who reviews these documents and asks Ms. Torres a series of

questions concerning her income and costs.
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27. DHS knows that Ms. Torres is a Spanish speaker who requires Spanish
interpretation and written translation.

28. On October 8, 2014, Ms. Torres brought her required proofs for re-certification
to the DHS Taylor Street Service Center, arriving in the afternoon. She was directed to Room
204, where she waited to be called by the next available eligibility agent.

29. When Ms. Torres was called by the DHS agent, she asked the agent for a
Spanish interpreter. The DHS employee said, in substance and in English, “nobody here in
Spanish.” Ms. Torres then pulled out her “I Speak™ card and gave it to the DHS employee. The
DHS employee still refused to provide interpretation. The DHS agent refused even to provide
access to the Language Line.

30. Without communicating with Ms. Torres, the DHS agent simply received Ms.
Torres’ proofs and typed some information into her computer, and then Ms. Torres left the
Center.

31. After her October 8, 2014 trip to the DHS Center, Ms. Torres received a notice
in the mail that her SNAP plan had been re-certified—but for only $87 each month. Ms. Torres
immediately recognized that this amount was below the amount to which she was entitled.

32. It would later come to light that DHS had not input Ms. Torres’ information
correctly into its system. In fact, the information that Ms. Torres provided to the DHS agent on
October 8, 2014 had not been input into the system at all. Instead, DHS—having refused to
communicate with Ms. Torres in Spanish—made a determination regarding Ms. Torres’
entitlement to benefits based on outdated information about Ms. Torres’ partner’s income and

her previous receipt of unemployment benefits. It was not until after intervention by an attorney
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acting on Ms. Torres’ behalf in November, 2014 that DHS began issuing Ms. Torres the correct
SNAP benefits of $220 per month.

33. Due to DHS’s failure to provide language access services, Ms. Torres went one
month without receiving the sufficient SNAP benefits to feed her family.

34. Sadly, this was not Ms. Torres’ first experience with DHS’s failure to provide
language access services. Earlier, when she went to the DHS Taylor Street Service Center in
October 2013 to re-certify for benefits, she asked for—but was refused—Ilanguage access
services. Similarly, when she returned to the service center in April 2014 to report that her
partner had moved to the District and to apply for Medicaid for him (and to renew Medicaid for
herself), the DHS agent again refused to provide her with language access services. Ms. Torres
was forced to enlist the assistance of a bilingual 16-year-old stranger who was there with her
mother—but still, the DHS agent refused to help Ms. Torres. These and similar interactions that
Ms. Torres had with DHS were the subject of a June 2014 complaint that Ms. Torres filed with
the OHR. After hearing the evidence, the OHR found Ms. Torres’ complaints to be substantiated
and ruled that DHS was in non-compliance with the LAA.

35. Further, Ms. Torres has witnessed other individuals not being provided with
necessary interpretation services. When she was waiting to be called by a DHS agent on October
8, 2014, Ms. Torres could overhear the interviews of other persons that were also taking place.
The person who was called just before Ms. Torres was also a Spanish speaker. She was asking
the eligibility worker for Spanish interpretation, but the worker was saying “no, there’s nobody,”
or words to that effect. The DHS agent resorted to using the woman’s approximately six-year-

old daughter to communicate with the resident.
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D. As a Result of DHS’s Failure to Provide Necessary and Required Translation and
Interpretation Services, Ms. Nolasco Lost Her Medical Insurance When She Was
Seven Months Pregnant.

36. Ms. Nolasco is a Spanish speaker. She does not speak English. DHS knows
that Ms. Nolasco is a Spanish speaker who requires Spanish interpretation and written
translation.

37. Ms. Nolasco, a mother of three, receives Alliance medical insurance through a
benefits program administered by DHS. This program is of critical importance to Ms. Nolasco,
who, at the times relevant herein, was pregnant with her third child. With her baby due in late
September 2015, Ms. Nolasco’s August 2015 prenatal doctor’s appointments needed to be
conducted at the George Washington University Hospital (as opposed to her local clinic) (the
“GWU Hospital”). Her first appointment at the GWU Hospital was scheduled for August 5,
2015.

38. Approximately three weeks before that appointment, on July 13, 2015, Ms.
Nolasco went to the DHS Taylor Street Service Center to re-certify for SNAP benefits (for her
family) and Alliance benefits (for herself and her partner). She was accompanied by her partner,
who speaks limited English. When she left the Service Center, she believed that her benefits
would continue, and that nothing had changed—although, as a Spanish speaker, she did not
communicate with any of the staff at DHS.

39. Then, unexpectedly, on August 2, 2015, the GWU Hospital called to cancel her
upcoming appointment. The GWU Hospital said that Ms. Nolasco did not have medical
insurance, and that the hospital could not see her until her medical insurance was active again.
This event caused Ms. Nolasco to be concerned that her Alliance benefits had been canceled.

40. Three days later, Ms. Nolasco returned to the DHS Taylor Street Service Center

to ask why she no longer had medical insurance. This time, Ms. Nolasco’s partner could not join
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her; Ms. Nolasco needed to speak with someone in Spanish. However, when Ms. Nolasco asked
for someone who spoke Spanish, DHS employees told her that no one was available.

41. Ms. Nolasco did what she could to communicate with DHS agents. However,
the interactions were frustrating, at best. Ms. Nolasco tried to explain that she was there to
follow up on a re-certification for medical insurance that she had already completed. DHS
agents, however, tried to provide Ms. Nolasco with a new application for benefits. Ms.
Nolasco’s repeated attempts to tell DHS staff that she did not need a new application for benefits
were unavailing. At the end of Ms. Nolasco’s visit, a female DHS employee arrived to speak
Spanish with Ms. Nolasco—but only briefly. The employee told Ms. Nolasco to just wait 10
days for the issue to resolve itself.

42. On August 14, 2015, Ms. Nolasco received a notice stating that her benefits had,
in fact, not been renewed and had been canceled, on the ground that her “current income exceeds
policy standards” (which was not true). The part of the notice that stated that her benefits were
canceled was in Spanish—but the explanation of why her benefits had been canceled, as quoted
above, was in English. This notice is clear evidence that DHS knew that Ms. Nolasco spoke
Spanish—that is why they issued part of the notice in Spanish—but nonetheless wrote the
substantive reason for her denial of benefits, in the same sentence, in English. A true and correct
copy of this notice is annexed hereto as Exhibit B. Ms. Nolasco had to resort to using her phone
to translate the key words of the notice into Spanish, which gave her a limited understanding of
what the notice said.

43. On August 17, 2015, Ms. Nolasco visited DHS—for a third time—to inquire
about the letter that she had received three days prior. Again, Ms. Nolasco was served by an

English-speaking DHS employee. When Ms. Nolasco said “no hablo inglés” (I don’t speak
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English), the DHS employee did not provide interpretation. When a bilingual DHS employee
happened to pass by, this bilingual worker stopped to tell Ms. Nolasco that there was nothing
else she could do, her benefits were canceled, and she needed to re-apply. However, by that time
it was 10:30 a.m., and the bilingual worker told Ms. Nolasco that it was too late for her to re-
apply. Ms. Nolasco had to come back the next day, getting there early enough to be able to
apply.

44, On August 18, 2015, Ms. Nolasco appeared—tfor a fourth time—at the DHS
Center. This time, she was attended to by two Spanish speakers. (One was a DHS agent who
generally handles questions/concerns, and the second was the DHS agent who helped Ms.
Nolasco specifically to re-apply.) The second agent put Ms. Nolasco’s information into the
system and said it would take 30-45 days for the re-application to go through. Ms. Nolasco did
not receive a letter indicating that she had been re-enrolled in Alliance benefits until Friday,
September 4, 2015.

45. As a result of DHS’s refusal to provide translation or interpretation services,
Ms. Nolasco wrongly lost her Alliance medical insurance benefits at a critical time of need. In
the month of August 2015—when she was seven to eight months pregnant—Ms. Nolasco did not
receive any ultrasounds or other prenatal care, as the GWU Hospital would not see her without
the insurance that DHS had wrongfully canceled. By the end of the month, Ms. Nolasco was less
than a month away from her due date and experiencing pain and discomfort in her abdomen.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

46. Plaintiffs bring this case as a class action under Superior Court Civil Rules 23(a)

and 23(b)(2) on behalf of the following class: All LEP/NEP residents of the District who,
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since January 1, 2012, have sought to benefit from the public services provided by DHS
(the “Class”).

47. Defendants’ discriminatory practice of failing to provide translation and/or
interpretation services has harmed all members of the Class. Plaintiffs estimate that members of
the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. Indeed, according to
DHS’s own documents, in 2013, there were over 22,000 LEP/NEP residents of the District who
had sought to benefit from DHS’s services.

48. Defendants’ relationship with the members of the Class, and Defendants’ failure
to provide language access services with respect to members of the Class, has been substantially
uniform. Questions of law and fact will predominately be common to the Class.

49. Defendants have acted in a manner generally applicable to the Class, thereby
making appropriate final injunctive relief with respect to the Class as a whole.

50. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class, and these questions
predominate over any questions affecting only individual members. Common questions include,
but are not limited to:

o  Whether Defendants’ failure to provide translation and interpretation
services violates Title VI,

o  Whether Defendants’ failure to provide translation and interpretation
services violates the DCHRA;

o  Whether Defendants’ failure to provide translation and interpretation

services has a disparate impact on persons based on their national origin;
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o  Whether Defendants’ failure to provide translation and interpretation
services deters or excludes residents who are otherwise eligible for
assistance from seeking such assistance from DHS;

e Whether Defendants have deterred, retaliated, or threatened to retaliate
against persons who have complained about DHS’s failure to provide
language access services; and

e What equitable and injunctive relief for the Class is warranted.

51. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the Class: (1) each of the Plaintiffs
has been denied language access services; (2) each has suffered harm as a result of the denial of
language access services; and (3) each has the same discrimination claim based on disparate
impact. All of these claims are shared by each and every Class member.

52. Plaintiffs fairly and adequately represent and will protect the interest of the
members of the Class. Plaintiffs have no conflict with one another or Class members. Plaintiffs
are committed to the goal of having DHS stop discriminating against persons based on their
national origin and improving its language access practices so as to eliminate its discriminatory
impact based on national origin.

53. Plaintiffs have retained counsel competent and experienced in class action
discrimination litigation.

54. This action is superior to any other method for the fair and efficient adjudication
of this legal dispute. Defendants have acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally
applicable to the Class, making appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief with respect to
Plaintiffs and the Class as a whole. The Class members are entitled to injunctive relief to end

Defendants’ common, uniform, unfair, and discriminatory policy and practice.
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55. DHS, an agency of the federally-created and supported District, see 1 Stat. 130,
receives federal funds.

56. As a proximate result of Defendants’ discriminatory actions, Plaintiffs and the
Class have suffered losses in benefits, earnings, and/or resources. As a result of those actions
and consequent harm, Plaintiffs and the Class have suffered such damages in an amount to be
proved at trial.

57. There is a real and actual controversy between Plaintiffs and Defendants
regarding whether Defendants’ practice of denying LEP/NEP residents translation or
interpretation services is an ongoing violation of the DCHRA, D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.,
and of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.

58. As a result, Plaintiffs are entitled to a declaratory judgment that the practices
complained of herein are unlawful.

FIRST CLAIM

(Intentional Discrimination
Under the D.C. Human Rights Act, D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.)

59. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations in all
preceding paragraphs.

60. Plaintiffs bring this claim on their own behalf and on behalf of the Class.

61. Defendants’ practice of denying interpretation and translation services to

LEP/NEP district residents—despite (i) legal compulsion under the LAA and other laws and
regulations to do so; (ii) Defendants’ awareness of its’ customers’ LEP/NEP status; and (iii)
explicit, on-the-spot requests by LEP/NEP residents for translation or interpretation services—
has harmed, and continues to harm, Plaintiffs and the Class, and constitutes unlawful

discrimination on the basis of national origin in violation of D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.

18



62. Plaintiffs and the Class have no plain, adequate, or complete remedy at law to
redress the wrongs alleged herein, and the injunctive relief sought in this action is the only means
of securing complete and adequate relief. Plaintiffs and the Class are now suffering, and will
continue to suffer, irreparable injury from Defendants’ discriminatory acts and omissions.

63. Defendants’ conduct has caused, and continues to cause, Plaintiffs and the Class
substantial losses in benefits, earnings, and/or resources.

SECOND CLAIM

(Intentional Discrimination
Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.)

64. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations in all
preceding paragraphs.

65. Plaintiffs bring this claim on their own behalves and on behalf of the Class.

60. Defendants’ practice of denying interpretation and translation services to

LEP/NEP district residents—despite (i) legal compulsion under the LAA and other laws and
regulations to do so; (ii) Defendants’ awareness of its’ customers’ LEP/NEP status; and (iii)
explicit, on-the-spot requests by LEP/NEP residents for translation or interpretation services—
has harmed, and continues to harm, Plaintiffs and the Class, and constitutes unlawful
discrimination on the basis of national origin in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.

67. Plaintiffs and the Class have no plain, adequate, or complete remedy at law to
redress the wrongs alleged herein, and the injunctive relief sought in this action is the only means
of securing complete and adequate relief. Plaintiffs and the Class are now suffering, and will
continue to suffer, irreparable injury from Defendants’ discriminatory acts and omissions.

68. Defendants’ conduct has caused, and continues to cause, Plaintiffs and the Class

substantial losses in benefits, earnings, and/or resources.
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THIRD CLAIM
(Disparate Impact Discrimination
Under the D.C. Human Rights Act, D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.)

69. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations in all
preceding paragraphs.

70. Plaintiffs bring this claim on their own behalf and on behalf of the Class.

71. Defendants’ practice of denying translation or interpretation services to

LEP/NEP residents has a disparate impact based on national origin and is neither job-related nor
consistent with business necessity. Even if Defendants’ practice of denying translation or
interpretation services to LEP/NEP residents could be justified as a business necessity, which it
cannot, less discriminatory alternatives exist that would serve any legitimate purpose.

72. Plaintiffs and the Class have no plain, adequate, or complete remedy at law to
redress the wrongs alleged herein, and the injunctive relief sought in this action is the only means
of securing complete and adequate relief. Plaintiffs and the Class are now suffering, and will
continue to suffer, irreparable injury from Defendants’ discriminatory acts and omissions.

73. Defendants’ conduct has caused, and continues to cause, Plaintiffs and the Class
substantial losses in benefits, earnings, and/or resources.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray that this Court issue judgment in their favor
granting the following relief:

74. Certifying the case as a class action on behalf of the proposed Class;

75. Designating Representative Plaintiffs Maria Amaya Torres and Minerva
Nolasco as representatives of the Class;

76. Designating Representative Plaintiffs’ counsel as Class Counsel,
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77. Issuing a declaratory judgment that the practices complained of herein are
unlawful and violate Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et
seq.; and the D.C. Human Rights Act, D.C. Code § 2-1401.01 et seq.

78. Issuing a permanent injunction against Defendants, and all of their officers,
agents, successors, employees and representatives, and any and all persons acting in concert with
them, from engaging in the unlawful policies, practices, customs, and usages set forth herein;

79. Issuing an order that Defendants, to eliminate the possibility of further acts of
discrimination, institute and carry out policies, practices, and programs that ensure compliance
with the D.C. Language Access Act of 2004,

80. Issuing an order prohibiting Defendants from retaliating against District
residents who complain about DHS’s failure to provide translation or interpretation services;

81. Awarding costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent
allowable by law; and

82. Granting such other and further legal and equitable relief as this Court deems
necessary, just, and/or proper.

Washington, D.C. Respectfully submitted,
October 7, 2015
HOGAN LOVELLS US LLP
By:_ /s/ Steven P. Hollman

Steven P. Hollman (D.C. Bar # 375658)
Ryan J. Strasser (D.C. Bar # 1008955)

555 Thirteenth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20004-1109

Tel.: 202-637-5600

Email: steven.hollman@hoganlovells.com
ryan.strasser@hoganlovells.com
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WASHINGTON LAWYERS COMMITTEE
FOR CIVIL RIGHTS AND URBAN AFFAIRS

By:_ /s/ Matthew Handley
Matthew Handley (D.C. Bar # 489946)
Elliot M. Mincberg (D.C. Bar # 941575)
Dennis Corkery (D.C. Bar # 1016991)

11 Dupont Circle, N.W., Suite 400

Washington, D.C. 20036

Tel: 202-319-1000

Email: matthew handley(@washlaw.org
elliot mincberg@washlaw.org
dennis_corkery@washlaw.org

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
OF COUNSEL:

Nathaniel S. Boyer, Esq. (pro hac petition forthcoming)
HOGAN LOVELLS US LLP

85 Third Avenue

New York, N.Y. 10022

Lauren Cury, Esq. (pro hac petition forthcoming)
HOGAN LOVELLS US LLP

555 Thirteenth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20004-1109

Allison Miles-Lee (D.C. Bar # 982879)
BREAD FOR THE CITY

1525 7th Street, N.-W.

Washington, D.C. 20001

22






RN




ek

ey
L

Eeiis
e
RIS

A

i

&

it

e it

tied

1

=
£

o

.
4




MAYOr
b

2

o

fOF

at

I,“,

1.

ne Team

e

Py bansuspe Recascanniag t:m*r-pii:mt@ R




2
&
£

NoaRE

i3

i

M

rrSsSATNEEECY

anguseain

1

S

About Language Access

<
o

Falao
SeaBren®

paere




Vil ansuane Rrcassannua Tompliance Review

Enforcement

Complaints Received in Y14 FYi4 Docketed Cases by Agenoy

QR
SN - , o
N et of U
NN . B Dept, of Human Sarvices: 3
N pon 5 . B G I SR O 28 .
8 HantoariMedar Yekaoiags 8 g
Metrapolian Police Deptn ¥

Metropoiitan Police Depts 8

CGERD o Humeh Servies

DC Board of £

R ';%". B T L R G s o
N RS T S R
. e o o
DC Taxicabh Commission: §

BO Hotsing Auhonie

Eehia

e LE nT §QC§"'§

Ssencis ourside lunsdintian
Unspeaiied

Non-Lompliangs Findings Reasons for Non-Compliance

By dgenny

Qutcame of Cases Bocketed
BRI

Aganaies were found in

S i AR BN - i i
; DOpL O Hiaman Senvicac 8

Motronoiian Padce Dapt 8

Dt of Motar Vabiddae o \\
\‘

\\\\ \\\\\\\\\ \

N



PY¥IA Eanvasadinatesy Snnaal Gomplisnce Reviaw

Technical Assistance

CWEOARE TASKED  WITH  BRIDGING
THE ACCESS GAP TO ENSURE BETTER
PUBLIC SERVICES  FOR  INDIVIDUALS
WHO  ARE DECENT,  CARING AND
HARDWORKING,  BUT  MAY  HAVE
DIFFICULTIES COMMUNICATING IN THE
ENGLISH LANGUAGE. AT LANGUAGE
ACCESS COORDINATOR MEETINGS | FEEL
INSPIRED ANDWELL-PREPARED TO CARRY
OUT THAT IMPORTANT TASKY

-.

7

=

iy,
//’/’//,7//

,//f’@/

el

/
/

%

&\\ \

B
7



W

5

e

TE;

om———

-
Ud k

alt

g

N
NN
i

P
o

5
71
[els
Iy
3
S2F
oo ]
- -
hernd
L .
£ 5
& f
: D
& AHC S .
38 H o rnnnn
7 e
% gu P {
& Lo
¥ L] ™
4 o .
) . L
Wm I N
£ . o} B, %
e 3 %
535
P \\\\\\\\ %
.- Wi
%

cCommun




¥

aricip

<

s

- o
o =
[k RN et
& © g
G (%31
s g o
fe] m @
= i g
&= w2
pos P
[aH] Mﬂw [
s Q\.
o =
- o
Ty g%
AP a d 7 s
@ ks e Lo
it e B E 3
= fw  uE Z
L e = =
= e K AE o
QG = H 5% e
Lot e ed £
S o B P m...w
o &f =5 0
> PR P ]
@] oo Lows o
) = A M . 0
=
S —, o &
S £ o =
< . Y T =
Y et o )
o —E 2
N 2 e oL =4
et o= G T
P v 0 0 s
pne ] [ crm aed
@ PagR o >
& LE Es OTO
[T o {
v e [ L I )
m ,m% pl W o
= jos] DY ]
! 4 I
g - G Gy o v
) oo oo oo b=
1 e - . s s
m 9 — o @ 2 b
P o fo ] o] 4 7 15
= 5 ] e
am [ ] _— - 7]
D foo bt
O o ey @ B
b oo Bow & om i
= foed =
G S 5 Y TG G g o
oo — o @ o
T 491
foud

in
rai

Collect
or fikely

« Provide

Co
= Py
P

>

3
%

i

Mon

BNCEREY
jor

d
endcies

H

sannt
& Reporting
M

for

Contact Ag

lance

FSSS AN
E N

irements

@ 77
e
2 mmm < 5 |
208 = () s
% G preeiens [ e P
. 5 O
i@ 0. X oo 7




3 . ; ; ) . Gmo I ID B B
# \\m& e T U I LR B o B A = I L R G & L TR o < F I v A D =
W D TR IR R R =S S R oy @
. v b, LD T e Loz D Ko Z = 3 b = o) o a v..\ ,M....u e
ot vy o S v B G T W e e = s o
Q\\\\\\\\\\\\ A L 4o T VL S S TR o5 e [ ) o WA
4 e . i A TS [y B -~ s R A T
s Gy =Ry #o R TV R S R S ol = O A4 =
7 3 o . AP = qu\. &Y ] &) - oot |40 B N - L el = Mt
o - g N & Ay s L N . 7 - e
A [T ol O T i o TR Lo LA : sy S0 LS
L, o S O - - == =S S
o I 5L 5 S B 8558 %oy b 2 85 =
\\\\\\\& smm (AT o m_\w R B . ! o % T
) - Gy e o el 2 i o ] o aee ¢ . i (AR
% s R O R == n L A e
’ ; S . [ =0
B 5 S Yo on 2o i 8 s s L N
G L == s R z 88 7 w2y 5 &
Z, ny L v o o W = W v . : P
5 G Y e 5 - T y [ I P [ 78]
Ty, v\\\w PR R e -oE B mooE o : 2 o
7 - . TLs an o W =
w\\\x‘“&\ & wwv. [ . - - mwﬂ R ' s
. S = o o - TR I T
G I B O W o @os n W
-y (83 L) - R’ [ y
g c 85 & = . £8 w~
% oA = R S =
. L [h] xR ] P 5 e
o P -y = & ol AR
R = s & s
mﬂ.w Mfw T Lm“ Lo [P
woo T e = - 1 oo
G oy o : .
Mo, T N - [ . ~ G4 N )
. pore; ity R s P i i3
(59 o i, |07 BN SV I o 0 S A5 S id ey L. Ll
R 7 T = 9 . g
3 . - e ) 1y em o i T s
s 5 e L ) R L L
- Teen - - " . { 5 s R
I L8 g = 5o 2 5
. R P AT e e :
o D= T o ] ooE s W
% el L <] S e .
m 7 o -l oo & o W =L g g
Gy O [ & a4 .
T %) ad = 1 b Py e b b e e
ke e R E o .- A o
O LT h st i [ gy oA L et
MY S e i} £ g 4 =AY W -
o D VR =S o 54 4oz o
S (3 1P S T L 3 o o B I} - I - @
2 R =AY L B oo o 4
& S B RS LS T S ! oo sl o
o b e lh | ) : ) a— 60 SR o . o
7 AR T : = 4 = = W T i
1 RS B |22 B s B xS I a 2T -
g R o G i o= o 4
L i e o = : [ e R & be
- P R A Toal 9
& 03 @y - 4et e L o B ]
T oW L S G O B R
= = oo N v o= R DR = B o
73 et o W { = o o Sth <
h TP R S S ¢ D ey k w o
o ) ‘% e o= 8} S - -
@ oy oy LT i o S o 5D -
o - TSR0 B P b R N G R .wt\ t D 17
= P S V. SO oo “ S e 2
= s B RS G o T ey T 4T o
7 T 1 v @ = moE w o 3
G T N . = R R A )
o S L [ B By sd ISR T =
i L vnd g ~ . S L T .
2 I B 5 LD — e L4 O3 = B
¥ I T O T Wt o ) e - i o
538 - *
m
& W
- .
£



. o =
w @oTE =
o =
e [ Sy
» e - 03
Lt [V R O R
A - e
o (%] po
=W g7 hmo
4 e 175 o)
;. ¢ T
9 [an I
; AR o
aQ o e
s a5
\i.l.\ = ey
o . IS
; [P J T
i = g
14 e L
Fn) ] r\u“ © &
= = -
ot R T
5 @D b
i Eats] b o TR
e - . Lt L P
o oo s Y
jos = [ o U
a2 o ‘ b s
o Seaa - Ieh) p—
o Lo = U LT
posd 5> - P
= o = & e <
boes P Sem LA Lt Pt
% e o
. [ 3 [go]
\\f e f .rL\ g
o [ Y,
& @A 5o 9n
3 Pt pe o
@ e e I
k et [P 3
it - R o T
o< [ e e
7 [ O
o e - e
= = %] L2
o - ey s Py F}
& o 2on
A5 B [ [
o A <
ar 5 [¢7] 17 o -
e PR P
I, s ? i
- iy oy a o -~
) ) bl ¢ b N
e o 1) o D
& 3 g4
e o I
. i " NI s ey
@ HoOm o i
ot el e V= I
; L 5 I el
- ano os o )
Wy & = 3 et
w N oy == p T
i T b b e b=
! o N :
= PP P [ i
- ! <L = . s (98]
. = & =
. ; o e Lo £¥
= . (o274 = =
. Poooesl Pend = -
e i o §%
- s e ot
s ot . e -
S . = s 3
o W = et
o o [e3) L
W - @
i PEa = M k
= 3 IR e bz
& e [ [
i et Ien) 5 oo
P . o
z = Loon =
2 & S =
9“ &Y s %
& s e
o [Fi u
£ o 1 98]
2 © &
- Ll Ll
£ pst L
& g ©
= mﬂ ke
2 4 =
52 T R
= = )
v P Iy
33 h &
57 ; L
i 7 &%
; & g
o e tel
Ien)
@ L2 Pl
= E— 2
= o £l
s woE ,
23 65 =2 W
% - e,
& o - =gy
(«H L 3 =
222 = [
= 7 B— ol
oty
3



TS e
e Ao T i
. S

py by -

1 B B vy

. = O

2 A VR el v

oo 5 A

oo O
[

;
4
3

{

;

CQ
g
\
i
{
{

5 on
R AT R 5
o o i

I3
in

g i
mf..J %) A
g e e i
&l
. A
PR ¢ -
s b T ot
N o g
- 3 <TG

tEY

) =T
£ WG
[o%] [l
& PO T
o G
o oo
R e o
7 - Y

@ ==
T o]
49 oo s}
- i
=
(S T e
o e s .
= O
= et ol b
- ) B

< 5
Lo

¥

/

N

o
;
3

e

=
B %
£ Al
3% o
22 . 5
o [ P
i <<{ I
53 -5
3 o3
i 43 —~
5 ar L=
gt G .z
o L2
Z w0
12 <L
= <
% [
7 o
o oo
G ey P
%3 TG
M o =
e Ex
@ [o5]
Mwu o [
Z SR
Ty R S
£
5 o W
st Pt
S R
= e
s
B

. Py
D
[ i

I
el
[ I
- [
oo
Zh T
@

e
rhan
I

}

t
7
{
A

10 Years of Language Access

[
H
H
I
L

i
b

an i
C




2
i
£
£
33
G
>
3

i3

i

M

P¥IA Eanvanadinatesy SnnaalG

Pl

i

o harrie

o3y
U

4 g
b =
o i
&
R -
et
s
P!
4 o

=
: ~
e
1%
O
e
(953
[V ]
7 e
T o
W
toy oot
oo
' S
L2 i
IVl Iy
s Wi
7t i
[ s
i
\y -~
tan) {
P b
5 “l
o
T s
! ot
PR
- o
" o
o
e dead
NI

lso accompar

3

T

DS Wae ¢

unity memt

N

a SecC

for

impie

ation

ment

-
1
[ RE -

nroncient.

;
H

i

!“t‘}" o

ua
sapm

.‘i 3

e oo
(S
{

ing th

‘
\

NNTRe)
i \4"

s

AL
va

Pty
i

R
34

national




G
a7
ion

- -
4 S wdeel . 5
- wWoon = P
Lo — o .
[y o i e )
= s - N
L i b
(W P o
o Y =
oy [ A [}
L -~
m””” -
ehesh ! 1S
Y L. ﬂ%
W - Y3y oot
(o R ! o et
o o o —5
i & o —
P Tt a s
G beden : 3t
@ . et o [a%
S w2
e oy e B —
7 5 A bl o
ol i Ao = -+
i 7w o R
- e, P Sems -
O} operg T W %) \:\u [
1 . : vt [ o
: T2 IR e

3

ot DO populat
el
i

t
n-0

"y

I

£ . 7
= Y o
% PRI
5 4 .
AN Z .
” oIS y W i \§ Y
iz o P o %, Ie N .w
5 & W = 7 (U (L
2 = = ;[
Z e (1) . o~ 888 .\aU "
3 L ! o . . -
o - (5 - Rk P, 7 -
. bl g, Z e e,
........................................................................ 2o = 7 Y, G LD B
= “ w, s L
‘. %, %
%

S8
@}.\\
N

o
G

DOt B dent
&N
}tk

hty-five percent
g
2

.
3

i
s

o i

&

eig
Py
it
\”;

% oy S @ N ;
% ; s S & Eay
% TS iy : )
% e s 2 v
P 7 7rm e e 4
% 0 T % 7 oy
= + wons . R = Z . ]
z @@ L, 2 5 B
= I o A = % o
- . e 2 i -
bz ey [T o g S e e M\;
,
o]
~

o

T ; ey
- J
e, v e e S
a, 7 . §\§\\“§ .
. W % P
iyy Y A
iz ke et
P
.



25%

<

LS

LEF/NEP paren

2
i
£
£
33
G
>
3
15
iR
£

40 percer

nntsseaess Annasils

3

1

S

-t
po ..Mn..\_
D
@ @
et ” o
o i
O
L ym =
=
T Em
_.L»w 5
HOE

0

IR S A

sl aalalsl
A0S Ll

e

hoven

four percent

A

ighty

&l

of LEP/I










7S JET—
o ] s
L) [s1s] e
et s N
e Doz
- o T
5 =
- 7
pe =
o p—

yateia

adlec

a

St
Ve

(8

N
S
e G
e o
‘5 =
=

nts for Age

equireme

e

ce R

22 vt
: £
s - s
n 3
2 R o
% [N . s
= 2 &
% & s
g ‘.. (-
Mm O ot o
= (I @ =
W

&

ecards

§ Lansusge Kuce

r

e

5 with i

the Sco
tion:

ut

=8

fer

Compliance Rating Methodology

Abo

it




T

2
&
£
£

BICH R

H

EY R Langusse dnress dnnustismpt

QY

I

)

'E

i
o

¥
i

A

g
o

Frna

y

o

‘




Vil ansuane Rrcassannua Tompliance Review

Summary of Findings
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18 agencies reported providing OHR-led
training to public contact and/or senior
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requirements and cultural competency.
A few agencies reported providing either
in-house and/or online training, while
others reported plans to provide training
in FY15.
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Superior Court of the District of Columbia
CIVEIL DIVISION
5066 Indiana Avenue, N.W., Suite 5660
Washington, D.C. 208081 Telephone: (262) 879-1133

MARIA AMAYA TORRES and MINERVA NOLASCO,
Plaintiffs,

2015 CA 007701 B

s, ~ v .
A Case Number

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, c/o Attorney General of D.C.,
441 4th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20001

Defendants.

SUMMONS
To the above named Defendant:

You are hereby summoned and required to serve an Answer to the attached Complaint, either
personally or through an attorney, within twenty (20) days after service of this summons upon you, exclusive
of the day of service. If you are being sued as an officer or agency of the United States Government or the
District of Columbia Government, you have sixty (60} days after service of this summons to serve your
Answer. A copy of the Answer must be railed to the attorney for the party plaintdt who s suing yvou. The
attorney’s name and address appear below. If plaintiff has no attorney, a copy of the Answer must be mailed
to the plaintift at the address stated on this Summons.

You are also required to file the original Answer with the Court in Suite 5000 at 300 Indiana Avenue,
NW., between 8:30 am. and 5:00 p.m., Mondays through Fridays or between 9:00 am. and 12:00 noon on
Saturdays. You may file the original Answer with the Court either before you serve a copy of the Answer on
the plaintiff or within five (5) days after you have served the plaintdf. If you fail to file an Answer, judgment
by default may be entered against vou for the relief demanded in the complaint.
Steven P. Hollman, Esq. Clerk of the Court
Naroe of Plaiatiff’s Attorney ' )
Hogan Lovells US LLP
555 Thirteenth Street, N.-W. By
Address
Washington, D.C. 20004-1109

(202) 637-5600 Drate 10/07/2015
Telephone

EEERE BT (202) 879-4828 Veuillez appeler au (202) B79-4828 pour une traduction
ol M AIDY, (202) 870-4828 B BB B MAR  PACT FCRT ASTTIR (202) 879-4828 SRB-A

Dé c6 mdt bai dich, hiy goi (202) B79-4828

BPORTANT: F YOU FAIL TO FILE AN ANSWER WITHIN THE TIME STATED ABOVE, OR IF, AFTER YOU
ANSWER, YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT ANY TIME THE COURT NOTIFIES YOU TO DO SO, A JUDGMENT BY DEFAULT
MAY BE ENTERED AGAINST YOU FOR THE MONEY DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF DEMANDED IN THE
COMPLAINT. IF THIS OCCURS, YOUR WAGES MAY BE ATTACHED OR WITHHELD OR PERSONAL PROPERTY OR
REAL ESTATE YOU OWN MAY BE TAKEN AND SOLD TO PAY THE JUDGMENT. IF YOU INTEND TO OPPOSE THIS

ACTION, DO NQT FAIL TO ANSWER WITHIN THE REQUIRED TIME,

If vou wish to talk to a lawver and feel that you casnot afford to pay a fee to a lawver, promptly costact one of the offices of the
Legal Axd Society (202-628-1161) or the Neighborhood Legal Services (202-279-3100) for help or come to Suite 5000 at 500
Indiana Averwe, N.W ., for more inforoation conceming places where you may ask for such help.

See reverse side for Spanish trasslation
Vea al dorso Ja traduccion al espafio]

FORM SUMMONS - Jan. 2011 CASUM.dec



Superior Court of the District of Columbia
CIVEIL DIVISION
5066 Indiana Avenue, N.W., Suite 5660
Washington, D.C. 208081 Telephone: (262) 879-1133

MARIA AMAYA TORRES and MINERVA NOLASCO,

Plaintiffs,

2015 CA 007701 B

'8 ~ ¥ .
A Case Number

LAURA ZEILINGER, Director of the D.C. Department of Human Services,
in her official capacity, 64 New York Ave., N.E., 6th Floor, Washington, D.C.

20002

Defendants.

SUMMONS
To the above named Defendant:

You are hereby summoned and required to serve an Answer to the attached Complaint, either
personally or through an attorney, within twenty (20) days after service of this summons upon you, exclusive
of the day of service. If you are being sued as an officer or agency of the United States Government or the
District of Columbia Government, you have sixty (60} days after service of this summons to serve your
Answer. A copy of the Answer must be railed to the attorney for the party plaintdt who s suing yvou. The
attorney’s name and address appear below. If plaintiff has no attorney, a copy of the Answer must be mailed
to the plaintift at the address stated on this Summons.

You are also required to file the original Answer with the Court in Suite 5000 at 300 Indiana Avenue,
NW., between 8:30 am. and 5:00 p.m., Mondays through Fridays or between 9:00 am. and 12:00 noon on
Saturdays. You may file the original Answer with the Court either before you serve a copy of the Answer on
the plaintiff or within five (5) days after you have served the plaintdf. If you fail to file an Answer, judgment
by default may be entered against vou for the relief demanded in the complaint.

Steven P. Hollman, Esq. Clerk of lizg,g(;@w
B

Naroe of Plaiatiff’s Attorney

Hogan Lovells US LLP

555 Thirteenth Street, N.-W. By
Address

Washington, D.C. 20004-1109

10/07/2015

(202) 637-5600 Prate
Telephone

EEERE BT (202) 879-4828 Veuillez appeler au (202) B79-4828 pour une traduction
HZ A A, (202) 870-4828 B MBS UAML AT T AT (202) 879-4828 LRm-A

Dé c6 mdt bai dich, hiy goi (202) B79-4828

BPORTANT: F YOU FAIL TO FILE AN ANSWER WITHIN THE TIME STATED ABOVE, OR IF, AFTER YOU
ANSWER, YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT ANY TIME THE COURT NOTIFIES YOU TO DO SO, A JUDGMENT BY DEFAULT
MAY BE ENTERED AGAINST YOU FOR THE MONEY DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF DEMANDED IN THE
COMPLAINT. IF THIS OCCURS, YOUR WAGES MAY BE ATTACHED OR WITHHELD OR PERSONAL PROPERTY OR
REAL ESTATE YOU OWN MAY BE TAKEN AND SOLD TO PAY THE JUDGMENT. IF YOU INTEND TO OPPOSE THIS

ACTION, DO NQT FAIL TO ANSWER WITHIN THE BEQUIRED TIME,

If vou wish to talk to a lawver and feel that you casnot afford to pay a fee to a lawver, promptly costact one of the offices of the
Legal Axd Society (202-628-1161) or the Neighborhood Legal Services (202-279-3100) for help or come to Suite 5000 at 500
Indiana Averwe, N.W ., for more inforoation conceming places where you may ask for such help.

See reverse side for Spanish trasslation
Vea al dorso Ja traduccion al espafio]

FORM SUMMONS - Jan. 2011 CASUM.dec



Superior Court of the District of Columbia

CIVIL DIVISION- CIVIL ACTIONS BRANCH

INFORMATION SHEET
2015 CA 007701 B

MARIA AMAYA TORRES, ETAIL Case Number:

Vs Date:
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, ET AL [XI One of the defendants is being sued
in their official capacity.

Name: (Please Print) Relationship to Lawsuit
Steven P. Hollman, Esq. o
Firm Name: x] Attorney for Plaintiff
Hogan Lovells US LLP [ Self (Pro Se)
Telephone No.: Six digit Unified Bar No.: )

(202) 637-5600 375658 [ Other:
TYPE OF CASE: XI Non-Jury L1 6 Person Jury L1 12 Person Jury
Demand: $ Other: Injunction

PENDING CASE(S) RELATED TO THE ACTION BEING FILED
Case No.: Judge: Calendar #:

Case No.: Judge: Calendar#:

NATURE OF SUIT: (Check One Box Only)

A. CONTRACTS COLLECTION CASES
[ 01 Breach of Contract 1 14 Under $25,000 Pltf. Grants Consent 116 Under $25,000 Consent Denied
[ 02 Breach of Warranty [ 17 OVER $25,000 Pitf. Grants Consent[ ] 18 OVER $25,000 Consent Denied
[] 06 Negotiable Instrument [ 27 Insurance/Subrogation [] 26 Insurance/Subrogation
[ 07 Personal Property Over $25,000 Pltf. Grants Consent Over $25,000 Consent Denied
[ 13 Employment Discrimination [_] 07 Insurance/Subrogation [C134 Insurance/Subrogation
[ 15 Special Education Fees Under $25,000 PItf. Grants Consent Under $25,000 Consent Denied

[ 28 Motion to Confirm Arbitration
Award (Collection Cases Only)

B. PROPERTY TORTS
1 01 Automobile 1 03 Destruction of Private Property 1 os Trespass
] 02 Conversion o4 Property Damage

[ 07 Shoplifting, D.C. Code § 27-102 (a)

C. PERSONAL TORTS

1 01 Abuse of Process [] 10 Invasion of Privacy 117 Personal Injury- (Not Automobile,
[ 02 Alienation of Affection [] 11 Libel and Slander Not Malpractice)
[1 03 Assault and Battery [] 12 Malicious Interference - 18Wrongful Death (Not Malpractice)
[ 04 Automobile- Personal Injury [ 13 Malicious Prosecution 1 19 Wrongful Eviction
[] 05 Deceit (Misrepresentation)  [] 14 Malpractice Legal [] 20 Friendly Suit
D 06 False Accusation D 15 Malpractice Medical (Including Wrongful Death) D 21 Asbestos
[ 07 False Arrest [] 16 Negligence- (Not Automobile, [ 22 Toxic/Mass Torts
[1 08 Frand Not Malpractice) [123 Tobacco
[]24 Lead Paint
SEE REVERSE SIDE AND CHECK HERE IF USED

CV-496/hune 2015




Information Sheet, Continued

C. OTHERS

[ 01 Accounting

[1 02 Att. Before Judgment

[ 05 Ejectment

[ 09 Special Writ/Warrants
(DC Code § 11-941)

[1 10 Traffic Adjudication

[ 11 Writ of Replevin

[ 12 Enforce Mechanics Lien

[X1 16 Declaratory Judgment

[ 17 Merit Personnel Act (OEA)
(D.C. Code Title 1, Chapter 6)
[ 18 Product Liability

[ 24 Application to Confirm, Modify,
Vacate Arbitration Award (DC Code § 16-4401)
] 29 Merit Personnel Act (OHR)
[ 31 Housing Code Regulations
] 32 Qui Tam
] 33 Whistleblower

1L

CJo3 Change of Name

[ 06 Foreign Judgment/Domestic
[ 08 Foreign Judgment/International Judgment [ D.C. Code § [ 22 Release Mechanics Lien
[1 13 Correction of Birth Certificate

[ 15 Libel of Information [ 21 Petition for Subpoena
[ 19 Enter Administrative Order as [Rule 28-I (b)]

2-1802.03 (h) or 32-1519 (a)] [ 23 Rule 27(a)(1)

[] 14 Correction of Marriage [ 20 Master Meter (D.C. Code § (Perpetuate Testimony)
Certificate 42-3301, et seq.) [ 24 Petition for Structured Settlement
[ 26 Petition for Civil Asset Forfeiture (Vehicle) [J 25 Petition for Liquidation

[ 27 Petition for Civil Asset Forfeiture (Currency)
[ 28 Petition for Civil Asset Forfeiture (Other)

D. REAL PROPERTY

[ 09 Real Property-Real Estate
[] 12 Specific Performance

[ 04 Condemnation (Eminent Domain) (130 Liens: Tax / Water Consent Denied

[ 10 Mortgage Foreclosure/Judicial Sale [] 31 Tax Lien Bid Off Certificate Consent Granted
[ 11 Petition for Civil Asset Forfeiture (RP)

108 Quiet Title
125 Liens: Tax / Water Consent Granted

CV-496/ June 2015

Attorney’s Signature

Date



Superior Court of the District of Columbia
CIVEIL DIVISION
5066 Indiana Avenue, N.W., Suite 5660
Washington, D.C. 208081 Telephone: (262) 879-1133

MARIA AMAYA TORRES and MINERVA NOLASCO,
Plaintiffs,

V8. Case Number 2015 CA 007701 B

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, c/o Office of the Mayor, 1350
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20004

Defendants.

SUMMONS
To the above named Defendant:

You are hereby summoned and required to serve an Answer to the attached Complaint, either
personally or through an attorney, within twenty (20) days after service of this summons upon you, exclusive
of the day of service. If you are being sued as an officer or agency of the United States Government or the
District of Columbia Government, you have sixty (60} days after service of this summons to serve your
Answer. A copy of the Answer must be railed to the attorney for the party plaintdt who s suing yvou. The
attorney’s name and address appear below. If plaintiff has no attorney, a copy of the Answer must be mailed
to the plaintift at the address stated on this Summons.

You are also required to file the original Answer with the Court in Suite 5000 at 300 Indiana Avenue,
NW., between 8:30 am. and 5:00 p.m., Mondays through Fridays or between 9:00 am. and 12:00 noon on
Saturdays. You may file the original Answer with the Court either before you serve a copy of the Answer on
the plaintiff or within five (5) days after you have served the plaintdf. If you fail to file an Answer, judgment
by default may be entered against vou for the relief demanded in the complaint.
Steven P. Hollman, Esq. Clerk of the Court
Naroe of Plaiatiff’s Attorney
Hogan Lovells US LLP
555 Thirteenth Street, N.-W. By
Address
Washington, D.C. 20004-1109

(202) 637-5600 Drate 10/07/2015
Telephone

EEERE BT (202) 879-4828 Veuillez appeler au (202) B79-4828 pour une traduction
HZ A A, (202) 870-4828 B MBS UAML AT T AT (202) 879-4828 LRm-A

Dé c6 mdt bai dich, hiy goi (202) B79-4828

BPORTANT: F YOU FAIL TO FILE AN ANSWER WITHIN THE TIME STATED ABOVE, OR IF, AFTER YOU
ANSWER, YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT ANY TIME THE COURT NOTIFIES YOU TO DO SO, A JUDGMENT BY DEFAULT
MAY BE ENTERED AGAINST YOU FOR THE MONEY DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF DEMANDED IN THE
COMPLAINT. IF THIS OCCURS, YOUR WAGES MAY BE ATTACHED OR WITHHELD OR PERSONAL PROPERTY OR
REAL ESTATE YOU OWN MAY BE TAKEN AND SOLD TO PAY THE JUDGMENT. IF YOU INTEND TO OPPOSE THIS
ACTION, DO NQT FAIL TO ANSWER WITHIN THE REQUIRED TIME,

If vou wish to talk to a lawver and feel that you casnot afford to pay a fee to a lawver, promptly costact one of the offices of the
Legal Axd Society (202-628-1161) or the Neighborhood Legal Services (202-279-3100) for help or come to Suite 5000 at 500
Indiana Averwe, N.W ., for more inforoation conceming places where you may ask for such help.

See reverse side for Spanish trasslation
Vea al dorso Ja traduccion al espafio]
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
CIVIL DIVISION

MARIA AMAYA TORRES et al
Vs. C.A. No. 2015 CA 007701 B
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA et al

INITIAL ORDER AND ADDENDUM

Pursuant to D.C. Code § 11-906 and District of Columbia Superior Court Rule of Civil Procedure
(“SCR Civ”) 40-1, it is hereby ORDERED as follows:

(1) Effective this date, this case has assigned to the individual calendar designated below. All future filings
in this case shall bear the calendar number and the judge’s name beneath the case number in the caption. On
filing any motion or paper related thereto, one copy (for the judge) must be delivered to the Clerk along with the
original.

(2) Within 60 days of the filing of the complaint, plaintiff must file proof of serving on each defendant:
copies of the Summons, the Complaint, and this Initial Order. As to any defendant for whom such proof of
service has not been filed, the Complaint will be dismissed without prejudice for want of prosecution unless the
time for serving the defendant has been extended as provided in SCR Civ 4(m).

(3) Within 20 days of service as described above, except as otherwise noted in SCR Civ 12, each defendant
must respond to the Complaint by filing an Answer or other responsive pleading. As to the defendant who has
failed to respond, a default and judgment will be entered unless the time to respond has been extended as
provided in SCR Civ 55(a).

(4) At the time and place noted below, all counsel and unrepresented parties shall appear before the
assigned judge at an Initial Scheduling and Settlement Conference to discuss the possibilities of settlement and
to establish a schedule for the completion of all proceedings, including, normally, either mediation, case
evaluation, or arbitration. Counsel shall discuss with their clients prior to the conference whether the clients are
agreeable to binding or non-binding arbitration. This order is the only notice that parties and counsel will
receive concerning this Conference.

(5) Upon advice that the date noted below is inconvenient for any party or counsel, the Quality Review
Branch (202) 879-1750 may continue the Conference once, with the consent of all parties, to either of the two
succeeding Fridays. Request must be made not less than six business days before the scheduling conference date.
No other continuance of the conference will be granted except upon motion for good cause shown.

(6) Parties are responsible for obtaining and complying with all requirements of the General Order for Civil
cases, each Judge’s Supplement to the General Order and the General Mediation Order. Copies of these orders
are available in the Courtroom and on the Court’s website http://www.dccourts.gov/.

Chief Judge Lee F. Satterfield

Case Assigned to: Judge BRIAN F HOLEMAN
Date: October 7, 2015
Initial Conference: 9:30 am, Friday, January 08, 2016
Location: Courtroom 214

500 Indiana Avenue N.W.
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ADDENDUM TO INITIAL ORDER AFFECTING
ALL MEDICAL MALPRACTICE CASES

In accordance with the Medical Malpractice Proceedings Act of 2006, D.C. Code § 16-2801,
et seq. (2007 Winter Supp.), "[a]fter an action is filed in the court against a healthcare provider
alleging medical malpractice, the court shall require the parties to enter into mediation, without
discovery or, if all parties agree[,] with only limited discovery that will not interfere with the
completion of mediation within 30 days of the Initial Scheduling and Settlement Conference
("ISSC"), prior to any further litigation in an effort to reach a settlement agreement. The early
mediation schedule shall be included in the Scheduling Order following the ISSC. Unless all
parties agree, the stay of discovery shall not be more than 30 days after the ISSC." D.C. Code § 16-
2821.

To ensure compliance with this legislation, on or before the date of the ISSC, the Court will
notify all attorneys and pro se parties of the date and time of the early mediation session and the
name of the assigned mediator. Information about the early mediation date also is available over
the internet at https://www:dccourts.gov/pa/. To facilitate this process, all counsel and pro se
parties in every medical malpractice case are required to confer, jointly complete and sign an
EARLY MEDIATION FORM, which must be filed no later than ten (10) calendar days prior to the
ISSC. Two separate Early Mediation Forms are available. Both forms may be obtained at
www.dccourts.gov/medmalmediation. One form is to be used for early mediation with a mediator
from the multi-door medical malpractice mediator roster; the second form is to be used for early
mediation with a private mediator. Both forms also are available in the Multi-Door Dispute
Resolution Office, Suite 2900, 410 E Street, N.W. Plaintiff's counsel is responsible for eFiling the
form and is required to e-mail a courtesy copy to earlymedmal@dcsc.gov. Pro se Plaintiffs who
elect not to eFile may file by hand in the Multi-Door Dispute Resolution Office.

A roster of medical malpractice mediators available through the Court's Multi-Door Dispute
Resolution Division, with biographical information about each mediator, can be found at
www.dccourts.gov/medmalmediation/mediatorprofiles.  All individuals on the roster are judges or
lawyers with at least 10 years of significant experience in medical malpractice litigation. D.C. Code
§ 16-2823(a). If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, the Court will appoint one. D.C. Code §
16-2823(b).

The following persons are required by statute to attend personally the Early Mediation
Conference: (1) all parties; (2) for parties that are not individuals, a representative with settlement
authority; (3) in cases involving an insurance company, a representative of the company with
settlement authority; and (4) attorneys representing each party with primary responsibility for the
case. D.C. Code § 16-2824.

No later than ten (10) days after the early mediation session has terminated, Plaintiff must
eFile with the Court a report prepared by the mediator, including a private mediator, regarding: (1)
attendance; (2) whether a settlement was reached; or, (3) if a settlement was not reached, any
agreements to narrow the scope of the dispute, limit discovery, facilitate future settlement, hold
another mediation session, or otherwise reduce the cost and time of trial preparation. D.C. Code §
16-2826. Any Plaintiff who is pro se may elect to file the report by hand with the Civil Clerk's
Office. The forms to be wused for early mediation reports are available at
www.dccourts.gov/medmalmediation.

Chief Judge Lee F. Satterfield
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